
SIMPLAN Submission to Department re. Carter Street Precinct Plan on 

behalf of M.J. Developments - 28 September 2020   

 

Introduction: 

 

Firstly, the Department is to be commended for its the comprehensive consultation 

process. We have no objection to the Precinct proposals generally, but have specific 

concerns about the future viability of development within the proposed B6 Mixed use 

zone. We also wish to update/advise the Department concerning our recent 

submissions to Cumberland Council and the recent resolution of the Local Planning 

Panel in response to our submissions which recommended that Council officers 

examine the provision of “shop top housing” within all B6 Zoned land as part of an 

early “second stream” future review of the Cumberland Council consolidating LEP  

 

This submission primarily deals with issues relevant to  the future viability of 

development within the B6 Zone generally, including proposed B6 Zoned land 

situated opposite the Precinct along Parramatta road and within the Carter Street 

Precinct boundaries north of Parramatta Road.  

 

Discussion: 

 

MJ. Developments owns a large car yard property in Lidcombe along Parramatta 

Road  parallel and opposite to the Carter Street Precinct. Submissions made to 

Cumberland Council as part of their Local Environmental Plan (LEP) consultation  

process took issue with the limited range of land uses permitted in the Enterprise 

Zone (residential land uses are currently prohibited in the B6 Zone as part of mixed-

use development). This (exclusion of residential land uses) clearly  inhibits viable 

redevelopment options within the zone. It was further observed as part of our 

submissions to Cumberland Council that the former Holroyd Local Government Area 

(LGA) LEP currently permits shop top housing within the B6 Zone. However, the new 

Cumberland Consolidating LEP proposes to prohibit all residential uses within the B6 

zone.  

 

Previous submissions by SIMPLAN and MJ. Developments to Cumberland Council 

proposed that the (undesirable) creation of “existing use rights” for approved 

residential developments in former Holroyd LGA could be avoided by undertaking an 

early review of  land use controls in all B6 Zoned land following gazettal of the new 

Cumberland consolidating LEP. It was submitted that this would also “incentivise” 

development within the B6 zone. In response to written and verbal submissions to 

Cumberland Council’s Local Planning Panel, the Panel resolved on 20 February 

2020 as follows: 

 

   

  

The Panel recommends that shop top housing be considered for inclusion in the 

B6 zones as part of the Council’s future strategic corridor planning. The Panel is 

of the view that the non-residential component of the housing should be at least 

30% of the gross floor area of the building. 

 



 

Note: The above recommendation was accepted by Council. Council officers have indicated 

that this will be actioned as part of an early “second stream” review of the new consolidated 

Cumberland LEP post gazettal.  

 

With reference to the proposed B6 Zoning shown on the exhibited Carter Street 

Precinct Plan, we assume the new B6 Zone is intended to  have  similar land use 

controls to the existing B6 Enterprise Zone opposite along Parramatta Road (i.e. 

residential land uses will continue to be prohibited). Apart from improved “Metro” 

public transport accessibility in the future, the proposed B6 zone within the Precinct 

would appear to have no overriding planning or development feasibility attributes in 

comparison with similar “B6” zoned areas located along the opposite side of 

Parramatta Road which are currently well serviced by public transport. In our view, 

the land use and employment generating objectives of the new Precinct B6 zone 

will not be achieved as intended because timely, viable redevelopment is unlikely to 

occur if a restrictive B6 land use zone that prohibits residential uses continues into 

the future.  

 

A proportion of “Shop Top” housing as part of future  mixed-use development is 

essential in our view to “incentivise” redevelopment of all  B6 zones otherwise sites 

within the new B6 Precinct Enterprise Zone will likely remain vacant for some time 

or alternatively may attract land uses with a poorer urban design presentation. In 

contrast, a flexible Enterprise Zone land use initiative will significantly boost 

redevelopment by making proposals financially feasible and at the same time 

achieve much needed and timely improvements to the appearance of Parramatta 

Road. Encouraging and  prioritising good urban design outcomes along the 

highway was a key objective of  the Parramatta Road Urban Transformation 

Strategy.  

 

Apart from designated centres, no significant redevelopment has occurred  recently 

along most of Parramatta Road, including the many car yards located opposite the 

Precinct at Lidcombe. The age of many of the existing buildings along most of 

Parramatta Road, many 50 -100 years old, is testament to the current disincentive to 

redevelop properties. This has created a poor urban environment which will only 

persist unless a  more enlightened planning approach is implemented to  expands 

the range of  permitted land uses in the B6 Enterprise Zones not only within the 

Carter Street Precinct but opposite along Paramatta Road.  

 

Appropriate development standards in the Cumberland LEP can mandate a 

maximum residential component if there are ongoing concerns about employment 

generation. Future B6 permitted land use zonings post amendment of the 

Cumberland LEP should also be consistent along both sides of Parramatta Road. 

The Carter Street Precinct land use and development controls should therefore be 

A modified B6 Enterprise land Use allowing a proportion of residential  uses within 

future employment generating mixed use proposals is essential for feasible 

redevelopment to occur.  



reviewed  concurrently with the “second stream study” to be implemented by 

Cumberland Council (see above) .  

 

A future mixed land use option for the B6 Zone incorporating a proportion of  

residential use will also better relate to the remaining mix of land uses proposed in 

the revised Master Plan for the Carter Street Precinct. Industries have changed 

significantly  in the way they operate in recent times with the result that residential 

uses can happily co-exist with many business and light industrial uses. In addition, 

supervision of the public domain by apartment dwellers will enhance overall safety 

within the  Precinct.  

 

Finally, it is submitted that permitting a modest amount of residential use in the B6 

zone  would not prejudice Cumberland Council’s or the Department’s desired 

employment or residential strategies, as the distribution and amount of residential 

uses permitted on sites can be strictly controlled by inserting appropriate 

development standards in any amending LEP (see Panel recommendation 

above).  

 

Thank you once again for the further opportunity to make a submission to the 

Department. Please note that copies  of our previous submissions were provided to 

the Greater Sydney Commission, Cumberland Council and to the Department.   

 

Yours faithfully  

 

 

 

 

Ron Sim  

 
SIMPLAN  

Consulting  

Town Planners 

 
(on behalf of MJ Developments). 
 

cc. Cumberland Council  

 

Attachment:  Previous submission to Cumberland Council  


























































